IN THE SUPREME COURT 
OF FLORIDA 

CASE NO. 86,837 

GARY ELDON ALVORD, 

Appellant, 

VS. 

STATE OF FLORIDA, 

Appellee. 

On Appeal from the Circuit Court 
Hillsborough County, Florida 

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT 

PRELIMINARY BTATEMENT 

Appellant, Gary Eldon Alvord will be referred to herein by 

name or as llappellant.ii Appellee, State of Florida, will be 

referred to herein as the Ifstatelf or llappellee,ft References to the 

record on appeal will be designated by reference to the relevant 

page set f o r t h  in brackets. Example, [R. 11.

STATEMENT OF FACTS AND PROCEDURAL HISTORY 

M r .  Alvord was convicted and sentenced to death f o r  three 

counts of first degree murder. H i s  conviction and sentence were 

affirmed on direct appeal by this Court in Alvord v. State, 322 

So.2d 533 (Fla. 1975) cert. denied 428 U.S. 923 (1976). Pursuant 

to F1a.R.Crim.P. 3.850 Mr. Alvord filed a Motion f o r  Post 

Conviction Relief which alleged as one of its grounds the trial 

court's limitation by jury instruction of mitigating circumstances. 

Alvord v. State, 396 So.2d 184, 186 (Fla. 1981). Mr. Alvord's 

motion was denied by the trial court on August 27, 1979, and that 

denial was affirmed April 9, 1981. Alvord v. State, 396 So.2d 184 

(Fla. 1981). 

Thereafter, Mr. Alvord filed a petition f o r  writ of habeas 

corpus in the federal district court, which asserted as one of its 

grounds the limitation of mitigating circumstances. Alvord v. 

Wainwright, 564 F.Supp. 459 ( M . D .  F la .  1983). This petition was 

granted in part on the basis of Proffitt v. Wainwrisht, 685 F.2d 

1227, 1266-1269 (11th cir. 1982), however, the federal district 

court rejected petitioner's claim relating to the limitation of 

mitigating circumstances. Alvord v. Wainwrisht, 564 F.Supp. 459 

( M . D .  Fla. 1983). A resentencing was ordered by the district c o u r t  

but, on appeal by the State, the district court's resentencing 

command was reversed by the Eleventh Circuit and Mr. Alvord's 

convictions and sentence were affirmed. Alvord v. Wainwrisht, 725 

F.2d 1282 (11th Cir. 1984). 
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The Eleventh Circuit's reasoning f o r  denying Mr. Alvord relief 

was subsequently rejected by the United States Supreme Court in 

Hitchcock v. Duqqer, 481U.S. 393 (1987) and by this Court in Riley 

v. Wainwriqht, 517 So.2d 656 (Fla. 1987); Downs v. Duscler, 514 

So.2d 1069 (Fla. 1987); Thomsson v. Duqqer, 515 So.2d 173 (Fla. 

1987); and Morqan v. State, 515 So.2d 975 (Fla. 1987). 

Specifically, this court found that absent harmless error, 

resentencing is required when the jury was instructed to consider 

onlv evidence of statutory mitigating circumstances and the judge 

failed to consider non-statutory evidence. 

0 

Id. 
Prior to the Hitchcock decision on November 20, 1984, the 

Governor of Florida issued an executive order directing that a 

panel of psychiatrists examine Mr. Alvord pursuant to 5922.07, 

Fla.Stat., on November 26, 1984. Alvord v. State, 459 So.2d 317, 

318 (Fla. 1984). At the same time on November 20, 1984, Mr. Alvord 

petitioned this Court f o r  a writ of extraordinary relief and 

requested a judicial determination of his competency separate from 

the procedures in §922.07, Fla.Stat. Alvord, 459 So.2d at 319. 

This petition was denied. Id_. Subsequent to this Court's denial 

of Mr. Alvord's petition f o r  judicial determination of competency 

pursuant to 5922.07, Fla.Stat. (1983), Mr. Alvord was found 

incompetent t o  be executed by the three psychiatrists appointed by 

the Governor. Id. A future mental examination was ordered by the 

Governor to be conducted on September 29, 1987 to determine if Mr. 

Alvord's competency to be executed status had changed. 

0 
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Thereafter, Hitchcock v. Duqqer was decided and on September 

25, 1987, Mr. Alvord filed his Petition for Extraordinary Relief, 

f o r  a Writ of Habeas Corpus and Request for Stay of Mental 

Examination before this Court, seeking a stay of the compelled 

mental examination ordered by the Governor. Alvord v. State, 541 

So.2d 598, 599. This petition alleged that a mental examination 

should not be conducted in light of M r .  Alvord‘s possible 

resentencing under Hitchcock. Alvord v. State, 541 So.2d at 599. 

On September 28, 1987, this Petition was denied without opinion. 

- Id. On September 28, 1987, a Motion for Rehearing and Motion for 

Clarification was filed seeking clarification with respect to the 

Hitchcock claim. Id. On January 26, 1988, this Court directed the 

State to respond to the issue raised and the State responded. On 

July 9, 1988, Mr. Alvord filed an amendment to the Petition for 

Writ of Habeas Corpus and Request f o r  Oral Argument, which raised 

a separate claim under Caso v. State, 524 So.2d 422 (Fla. 1988).’ 

- Id. After oral argument, this Court denied relief, finding the 

Hitchcock error to be harmless. Alvord v. State, 538 So.2d 8 3 8  

(Fla. 1989), on rehearing, 541 So.2d 598 (F la .  1989). 

In finding the Hitchcock error to be harmless this Court based 

its finding only with respect to non-statutory mitigating factors 

developed on the face on the record. Alvord, 541 So.2d at 600. 

This Court did not address the restriction on non-statutory 

mitigating circumstances not present on the face of the record. 

’ The Caso claim is not an issue relevant to this appeal, this 
Court having previously resolved this issue on its merits after 
finding error but holding it was harmless. 
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- Id. Following this Court's finding of harmless error as to record 

Hitchcock non-statutory mitigating factors, this Court issued its 

opinion in Hall v. State, 541 So.2d 1125 (Fla. 1989). 

In Hall, this Court held that a Hitchcock claim should be 

presented to the trial court as a Rule 3.850 post-conviction 

proceeding instead of a habeas corpus proceeding in part to allow 

f o r  an evidentiary hearing to enable a defendant to develop non- 

record, non-statutory mitigating circumstances. Hall, 541 So.2d at 

1128. Based on the Florida Supreme Court's holding in Hall, M r .  

Alvord filed his Second Motion for Post-Conviction Relief on June 

15, 1989, seeking an evidentiary hearing to allow him to present 

non-record, non-statutory mitigating evidence to support his 

Hitchcock claim. [ R .  10-25). Mr. Alvord requested such a hearing 

as a means to present non-record evidence which did not exist in 

Mr. Alvord's habeas corpus proceeding and to comply with the 

mandate of Hall. [R. 10-251. 

On July 11, 1989, Mr. Alvord filed a Notice of Intent to Amend 

Motion f o r  Post-Conviction Relief and on August 1, 1989, Mr. Alvord 

filed an Amendment to his Second Motion f o r  Post-Conviction Relief 

in which he proffered several additional non-record, non-statutory 

mitigating circumstances which he intended to present at the 

evidentiary hearing he was requesting. [R. 26: 281. On March 9, 

1992, the State filed a Response to Defendant's Second Motion f o r  

Post-Conviction Relief, Motion f o r  Summary Judgment and Memorandum 

of Law in Support Thereof in which the State argued that Mr. 

Alvord's Hitchcock claim was procedurally barred. [ R .  4 4 ) .  
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On May 9, 1992, Mr. Alvord filed a Memorandum in Support of 

Defendant's Second Motion for Post-Conviction Relief. [ R .  601. On 

November 2, 1992, the trial court entered its Order Granting 

Evidentiary Hearing on Second Motion for Post-Conviction Relief 

finding that Mr. Alvord was entitled to an evidentiary hearing in 

which he may present evidence of non-statutory mitigating evidence 

that could have been presented at the sentencing, but was not 

presented due to Hitchcock error. [R. 951. 

On June 4, 1993, Mr. Alvord filed a Second Amendment to Second 

Motion for Post-Conviction Relief based on the United States 

Supreme Court holding in Espinosa v. Florida, 505 U.S. 1079, 112 

S.Ct. 2926, 120 L.Ed.2d 854 (1992), and the Florida Supreme Court's 

opinion in James v. State, 615 So.2d 668 (1993). [R. 1041. On 

September 23, 1993, the State filed a Response to Defendant's 

Second Amendment to Second Motion for Post-Conviction Relief. [R. 

1261. On May 2, 1994, Mr. Alvord filed Defendant's First Motion 

for Issuance of Subpoena Duces Tecum Without Deposition to obtain 

Mr. Alvord's mother's psychiatric records to be presented to the 

Court at the evidentiary hearing on non-record, non-statutory 

mitigating circumstances. [ R .  1391. 

a 

On June 14, 1995, the State filed a Motion f o r  Rehearing on 

Issue of Defendant's Entitlement to an Evidentiary Hearing on 

Defendant's Second Motion f o r  Post-Conviction Relief in which the 

State argued that Mr. Alvord's Hitchcock and Espinosa claims were 

procedurally barred. [R. 1411. Notwithstanding the Court's Order 

granting Mr. Alvord a right to an evidentiary hearing on non- 
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record, non-statutory mitigating circumstances, the t r i a l  cour t  on 

July 19, 1995 sponte ordered a rehearing for oral argument 

regarding Mr. Alvord's right to an evidentiary hearing. [R. 1651. 

Following oral argument the trial c o u r t ,  on September 2 8 ,  1995, 

entered its Order Denying Defendant/s Second Motion for Post- 

Conviction Relief. [R. 1701. Despite the trial court's earlier 

ruling, the trial court found that the issues raised by the 

defendant pursuant to Hitchcock and Espinosa were procedurally 

barred. [R. 1701. On October 2 4 ,  1995, Mr. Alvord filed his timely 

Notice of Appeal and this appeal follows. [R. 1661. 
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POINTS ON APPEAL 

I. 

THE TRIAL COURT COMMITTED REVERSIBLE ERROR 

HITCHCOCK CLAIM WAS PROCEDURALLY BARRED THUS 
DENYING HIM AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING IN ORDER TO 
PRESENT NON-RECORD, NON-STATUTORY MITIGATING 
CIRCUMSTANCES 

WHEN IT SPONTE FOUND THAT MR. ALVORD'S 

A -  MR. ALVORD'S HITCHCOCK CLAIM IS NOT 
PROCEDURALLY BARRED 

B. MR. ALVORD PROFFERED SIGNIFICANT NON- 
RECORD, NON-STATUTORY MITIGATING EVIDENCE 
WARRANTING AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING 

8 



SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT 

The trial court committed reversible error when it sua sponte 
found that Mr. Alvord's Hitchcock claim was procedurally barred 

thus denying him an evidentiary hearing in order to present non- 

record, non-statutory mitigating circumstances. Mr. Alvord's claim 

of non-record, non-statutory Hitchcock error is not procedurally 

barred because his contention that non-record mitigating 

circumstances w e r e  wrongfully withheld from the jury and judge 

during sentencing has never been presented to any court. 

In Mr. Alvord's F1a.R.Crim.P. 3.850 motion he proffered 

sufficient non-record, non-statutory mitigating evidence including 

but not limited to evidence of h i s  life-long psychiatric disorders, 

childhood hospitalizations, his drug and alcohol abuse, severe 

emotional problems as a result of a deprived childhood and capacity 

f o r  rehabilitation. Such proffered evidence of non-record, non- 

statutory mitigating evidence was sufficient to warrant an 

evidentiary hearing on his Rule 3.850 motion and thus the t r i a l  

court committed reversible error when it denied h i s  motion. 

e 
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ARGUMENT 

I. 

THE TRIAL COURT COMMITTED REVERSIBLE ERROR 
WHEN I T  SyA SPONTE FOUND THAT MR. ALVORD'S 
HITCHCOCK CLAIM WAS PROCEDURALLY BARRED THUS 
DENYING HIM AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING IN ORDER TO 
PRESENT NON-RECORD, NON-STATUTORY MITIGATING 
CIRCUMSTANCES 

The t r i a l  court committed reversible error when it found that 

Mr. Alvord's Second Amended Motion f o r  Post-Conviction relief 

pursuant to Hitchcock v. Duqqer, 481 U.S. 3 9 3 ,  207 S.Ct. 1821, 95 

L.Ed.2d 347 (1987), and Espinosa v.  Flo r ida ,  505 U.S. 1079, 112 

S.Ct. 2926, 120 L.Ed.2d 852 (1992), were procedurally barred. [R. 

1701. As such, this Court must reverse the trial court's order and 

remand t h i s  cause to the trial court with directions that Mr. 

Alvord be given an evidentiary hearing in which he can present non- 

statutory mitigating circumstances which were not properly 

considered at his initial sentencing. 

A. 

MR. ALVORD'S HITCHCOCK CLAIM IS NOT 
PROCEDURALLY BARRED 

Contrary to the trial court's holding, Mr. Alvord's Hitchcock 

c l a i m  as to non-record, non-statutory mitigating circumstances is 

not procedurally barred. Where a claim has previously been raised 

and ruled upon, it is procedurally barred from subsequent review by 

a court. Davis v. State, 589 So.2d 896, 899 (Fla. 1991). Mr. 

Alvord's claim of non-record, non-statutory Hitchcock error is not 

procedurally barred because his contention that non-record 

mitigating circumstances were wrongly withheld from the j u r y  and 

10 



judge during the sentencing phase of his trial has never been 

addressed by any court. 

Mr. Alvord was tried in 1974 before Lockett v. O h i o ,  438 U.S. 

586 (1978) and Sonser v. State, 365 So.2d 626 (Fla. 1978), at a 

time when Florida judges and lawyers labored under the view that 

the introduction of evidence in capital sentences was restricted to 

a narrow statutory list. See Sonqer v. Wainwrisht, 769 F.2d 1488, 

1494 (11th Cir. 1985) (en banc) (Hall, Kravitch, Johnson and 

Anderson, JJ., concurring) (Itof course, neither the state trial 

judge nor Songer's counsel [preclusive] construction of the statute 

was unfounded. Quite the contrary, theirs was the most reasonable 

interpretation of Florida law at the time."); see also Harvard v. 

State, 4 8 6  So.2d 537 (Fla. 1986); Masill v. Duqqer, 8 2 4  F.2d 879 

(11th Cir. 1987); Harqrave v. Duqqer, 832 F.2d 1528 (11th Cir. 

1987). 

At the time of Mr. Alvord's sentencing his trial counsel, the 

trial judge, and this Court operated under the ttreasonablett yet 

unconstitutional restrictive interpretation of the Florida death 

penalty statute, believing that non-statutory mitigating 

circumstances were not admissible at the sentencing hearing. As a 

consequence, Mr. Alvord was denied an individualized and reliable 

capital sentencing determination through the operation of State 

law. Subsequent to M r .  Alvord's sentencing, the United States 

Supreme Court in Hitchcock v. Duqqer, 481 U.S. 3 9 3  (1987) 

established f o r  the first time that non-statutory mitigating 

circumstances can be presented at sentencing and it is error for a 
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trial court to instruct otherwise. Id. The United States Supreme 

Court holding in Hitchcock was found by this Court to be a 

substantial change in the law. Cooper v. Dusser, 526  So.2d 900 

(Fla. 1988) (Lockett/Hitchcock claim subject to no procedural bar 

because Hitchcock claim represents a substantial change in the 

law); Thompson v. Duqqer, 515 So.2d 173 (Fla. 1987) (Hitchcock is 

a "change in the l a w 1 *  cognizable in post-conviction proceedings); 

Downs v. Dusser, 514 So.2d 1069, 1070 (Fla. 1987) (##We now find 

that a substantial change in the law has occurred that requires us 

to reconsider [a Hitchcock issueItt). 

There is no dispute that Hitchcock error existed in Mr. 

Alvord's flawed 1974 capital sentencing proceedings. At the trial 

court level the State has conceded that such a Hitchcock error 

existed, and this Court has found such error to exist. Alvord,  541 

So.2d at 599. A s  such all decisions by counsel and Mr. Alvord at 

the time of the trial/sentencing proceeding were predicated upon 

and inextricably linked to the unconstitutional capital sentencing 

scheme in force in Florida in 1974. Therefore, any llstrategy't or 

vlwaiverslt of trial counsel in his failure to present or fully 

develop non-statutory mitigating circumstances were a function of 

the statute, and if there were waivers in 1974, they may not be 

used to bar review of Mr. Alvord's present Hitchcock claim. 

When Mr. Alvord filed h i s  direct appeal and his first Rule 

3.850 motion, Hitchcock v. Duqqer did not exist, and since the 

r u l i n g  in Hitchcock has been found to be a nsubstantial changev1 in 

the law, Mr. Alvord's direct appeal and his first 3.850 motion 

12 



cannot act as a procedural bar to Mr. Alvord's present claim. 

Alvord v. State, 322 So.2d 533 (Fla. 1975); Alvord v. State, 396 

So.2d 184 (Fla. 1981); Thompson, 515 So.2d at 175. 

Ms. Alvord's initial Hitchcock claim to this Court was not 

brought pursuant to F1a.R.Crim.P. 3.850 but, instead, was brought 

by a direct habeas petition pursuant to Art. V, 53(b) (1) (9), 

Fla.Const. Alvord v. State, 541 So.2d at 598 .  Pursuant to Art. V, 

§3(b) (1) ( 9 ) ,  M r .  Alvord's petitioned this Court on September 25, 

1987, seeking to stay a mental examination directed by the Governor 

to determine h i s  competency. Alvord v. Duqqer, 541 So.2d at 599. 

Mr. Alvord's request f o r  a stay was denied in an unreported Order 

of this Court. a. M r .  Alvord also challenged by habeas petition 

whether he was entitled to a new sentencing proceeding in light of 

the Hitchcock decision and whether statements were improperly 

admitted in his case in chief. Id. 

At the time of M r .  Alvord's habeas petition on September 25, 

1987, this Court had not defined the confines and procedure f o r  

raising a Hitchcock claim. It was not until May 11, 1989 that this 

Court announced its decision in Hall v. State, 541 So.2d 1125 ( F l a .  

1989) which defined the proper procedure f o r  raising a Hitchcock 

claim.2 Specifically in Hall, this Court noted that Hitchcock 

claims had come before the cour t  by w a y  of both 3.850 motions and 

habeas corpus petitions. Id. at 1128. This Court then went on to 

hold that all Hitchcock claims should be brought by way of 

This Court issued its decision in Hall on May 11, 1989, the 
same day it denied Mr. Alvord's request f o r  rehearing on the denial 
of his Hitchcock habeas petition.- 
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F1a.R.Crim.P. 3.850 instead of by habeas corpus petitions, in part 

to ,enable a defendant to have an evidentiary hearing to build a 

record on non-statutory mitigating circumstances which could have 

been presented at sentencing but were not as a result of Hitchcock 

error. Id. 

Prior to this Court's ruling in Hall, Mr. Alvord filed his 

Hitchcoclq claim by way of a habeas petition requesting this Court 

to review the Hitchcock error which had occurred in his case 

knowing that this Court could not go beyond the record of his case. 

Yet, at the time because Hall had not been decided, Mr. Alvord did 

not know how to trigger a hearing to establish what non-record 

mitigating evidence may have merited a new sentencing hearing in 

his case because the procedure f o r  such a hearing was not yet 

established. Prior to this Court's holding in Hall, it seemed 

appropriate to request this Court to review the record of the case 

f o r  error. As this Court noted prior to Hall it was not uncommon 

f o r  Hitchcock claims to be brought by way of habeas corpus 

petition. Hall, 541 So.2d at 1128. 

In reviewing Mr. Alvord's habeas corpus Hitchcock claim this 

Court explicitly recognized that a Hitchcock violation had occurred 

stating, "We recognize the Hitchcock error and must now determine 

whether the error was harmless.Il Alvord, 541 So.2d at 599. This 

Court then went on to find that the Hitchcock error w a s  harmless in 

Mr. Alvord's case stating: 

We find the mitigating evidence clearly 
insufficient to change the sentencing decision 
given the circumstances in this case. Based 

1 4  



on the record, we conclude that the Hitchcock 
error was harmless. 

- Id. 

f in1 

at 600 (emphasis added). It is clear that this Court's 

ing, that based on the record, Hitchcock error was harmless, in 

no way procedurally bars Mr. Alvord from an evidentiary hearing in 

order to present evidence of non-record, non-statutory mitigating 

circumstances. Nor does the court's finding procedurally bar a 

determination following a hearing as to whether such non-record 

evidence, if it had been considered, might have influenced the 

jury's sentencing recommendation and the judge's sentence in his 

case. In fact, this Court's holding in Hall implicitly establishes 

that Mr. Alvord's Hitchcock claim is not procedurally barred and he 

is entitled to an evidentiary hearing in which to present non- 

record, non-statutory mitigating circumstances. Hall, 541 So.2d at 

1126. 

In Hall, this Court held that a previous finding of harmless 

error on a Hitchcock claim pursuant to a habeas petition did not 

bar a subsequent finding pursuant to a Rule 3.850 motion that a new 

sentencing was required. Id. This Court, rejecting the trial 

court's finding that Hall's claim was procedurally barred, held:

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