#### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

JUL 1 1996

FILLE O

GARY ELDON ALVORD,

Day Comment of the Co

Appellant,

v.

CASE NO. 86,837

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT IN AND FOR HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY STATE OF FLORIDA

#### BRIEF OF APPELLEE

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

### CANDANCE M SABELLA

Assistant Attorney General
Florida Bar No. 0445071
Westwood Center
2002 North Lois Avenue, Suite 700
Tampa, Florida 33607-2366
(813) 873-4739

COUNSEL FOR APPELLEE

#

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

#### SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

It is the state's contention that Alvord's Hitchcock claim is procedurally barred as this Court has already squarely addressed this claim on the merits in Alvord v. State, 541 So. 2d 598 (Fla. 1989). Alvord contends, however, that despite the prior ruling on this Honorable the merits of this claim, Court should. nevertheless, revisit this claim because this Court's ruling was limited to nonstatutory mitigating facts developed on the face of the record. Alvord argues that since the Court did not address the restriction of nonstatutory mitigating circumstances not present on the face of the record, that he must be afforded the opportunity, by way of an evidentiary hearing, to present these non-record mitigating circumstances to further substantiate his Hitchcock claim.

The trial court did not err in summarily denying this claim as it has already been rejected on the merits by this Court. Further, even if this Court's previous ruling on the merits did not preclude the trial court from granting relief, Alvord has failed to present any substantial nonstatutory mitigating evidence that was not previously presented to and considered by this Court which would undermine this Court's finding that the <a href="https://docs.pythology.com/Hitchcock">Hitchcock</a> error was harmless.

#### ARGUMENT

#### ISSUE I

WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN DENYING ALVORD'S MOTION FOR POST-CONVICTION RELIEF WITHOUT AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING.

Now in his second motion for post conviction relief appellant, Gary Eldon Alvord, alleges that he was improperly restricted from presenting certain nonstatutory mitigating circumstances to the sentencing jury in violation of his Eighth Amendment rights under the United States Constitution and Hitchcock v. Dugger, 481 U.S. 393 (1987). Alvord further alleges that he was entitled to an evidentiary hearing to enable him to prove such available nonstatutory mitigating factors and, upon its conclusion, a new sentencing hearing in this cause.<sup>3</sup>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup>Alvord also states, without supporting facts, law or analysis, that the trial court erred in finding his Espinosa v. Florida, 112 S.Ct. 2926, 120 L. Ed. 2d 854 (1992), claim procedurally barred. Alvord's cursory reference to Espinosa is insufficient to put this issue before this Court. Rodriguez v. State, 502 So. 2d 18 (Fla. 1DCA 1987). Thus, this claim should be deemed abandoned. Johnson v. Singletary, 647 So. 2d 106, 109 (Fla. 1994). Moreover, the claim is procedurally barred as the claim was not raised at trial or on direct appeal. Doyle v. Singletary, 655 So. 2d 1120, 1121 (Fla. 1995); Chandler v. Dugger, 634 So. 2d 1066, 1069 (Fla.1994); Jackson v. Dugger, 633 So. 2d 1051, 1055 (Fla.1993); Beltran-Lopez v. State, 626 So. 2d 163, 164 (Fla.1993). Further, any error in the jury instruction was harmless. Dougan v. Singletary 644 So. 2d 484, 485 (Fla. 1994).

It is the state's contention that Alvord's <u>Hitchcock</u> claim is procedurally barred as this Court has already squarely addressed this claim on the merits in <u>Alvord v. State</u>, 541 So. 2d 598 (Fla. 1989). With regard to the <u>Hitchcock</u> claim, this Court stated:

In Hitchcock, the United States Supreme held that, absent harmless error, resentencing was required when the jury was instructed to consider only evidence statutory mitigating circumstances and the consider nonstatutory failed to Hitchcock v. Dugger, 107 S.Ct. at evidence. At the outset, we note that the state concedes a Hitchcock violation because all participants -- the prosecutor, the defense counsel, and the trial judge -- explained to the jury that it should limit consideration to mitigating circumstances to those enumerated in the statutes.

We recognize the Hitchcock error and must now determine whether the error was harmless. Hitchcock. [cites omitted] We have previously applied the harmless error analysis to Hitchcock violations, found harmless error, and denied new sentencing proceedings. [cites omitted] On the other hand, we have found that certain Hitchcock violations did not meet the harmless error test and directed a new sentencing proceeding. [cites omitted]

In the instant case, the trial judge, in death sentence, found imposing the following three statutory aggravating circumstances; (1) the murders were committed during the commission of a burglary; (2) the murders were especially heinous, atrocious, or cruel; and (3) Alvord's conduct created a serious risk of death to many persons. judge also found two statutory mitigating circumstances. He concluded that, during the commission of the crime, Alvord was under the influence of extreme mental or emotional disturbance and his capacity to conform his conduct to the requirements of law was impaired.

Alvord now asserts that he was denied the opportunity to present nonstatutory mitigating evidence concerning among other things; (1) is capacity for rehabilitation; (2) the history of mental illness within his family; and (3) traumatic life experiences involuntarily committed to mental institutional. The latter two concern Alvord's mental condition which, to a large extent, was presented to both the jury and the We find the mitigating evidence clearly insufficient to change the sentencing decision, given the circumstances in this Based on the record, we conclude that the Hitchcock error was harmless.

<u>Id</u>. at 598, 599.

This is clearly a ruling on the merits that bound the lower court. The law is well settled that where a claim has previously been raised and ruled upon, it is procedurally barred from subsequent review by the lower court. Davis v. State, 589 So. 2d 896 (Fla. 1991); Francis v. Barton, 581 So. 2d 583 (Fla.), cert. denied, 111 S.Ct. 2879 (1991); Clark v. State, 569 So. 2d 1263 (Fla. 1990); Atkins v. Dugger, 541 So. 2d 1165 (Fla. 1989); Eutzy v. State, 541 So. 2d 1143 (Fla. 1989). Accordingly, the trial court properly denied the motion. See, Fratello v. State, 496 So.

2d 903 (Fla. 4th DCA 1986) (res judicata bars appeal of an issue clearly considered and disposed of in prior habeas proceedings).

The prior ruling also bars review on appeal where the issue has previously been appealed and denied. In Henry v. State, 649 So. 2d 1361 (Fla. 1994), this Honorable Court declined to review a suppression issue that was raised in Henry's prior appeal and denied by a majority of this Court finding that "the 'law of the case' doctrine applies. Under this doctrine, all points of law which have been previously adjudicated by a majority of this Court may be reconsidered only where a subsequent hearing or trial develops material changes in the evidence, or where exceptional circumstances exist whereby reliance upon the previous decision would result in manifest injustice. Preston v. State, 444 So. 2d 939, 942 (Fla.1984); Green v. Massey, 384 So. 2d 24, 28 (Fla.1980); Steele v. Pendarvis Chevrolet, Inc., 220 So. 2d 372, (Fla.1969); Ball v. Yates, 158 Fla. 521, 29 So. 2d 729, 738 (1946), cert. denied, 332 U.S. 774, 68 S.Ct. 66, 92 L.Ed. 359 (1947)." Id. at 1364. "It is only in the case of error that prejudicially denies fundamental constitutional rights that this Court will revisit a matter previously settled by the affirmance of

a conviction or sentence." <u>Porter v. Dugger</u>, 559 So. 2d 201, (Fla. 1990), quoting, <u>Kennedy v. Wainwright</u>, 483 So. 2d 424, 426 (Fla.), <u>cert. denied</u>, 479 U.S. 890, 107 S.Ct. 291, 93 L.Ed.2d 265 (1986).

Alvord contends, however, that despite the prior ruling on the merits of this claim, this Honorable Court should, nevertheless, revisit this claim because this Court's ruling was limited to nonstatutory mitigating facts developed on the face of the record. Alvord argues that since the Court did not address the restriction of nonstatutory mitigating circumstances not present on the face of the record, that he must be afforded the opportunity, by way of an evidentiary hearing, to present these non-record mitigating circumstances to further substantiate his Hitchcock claim. To support this proposition, Alvord relies on this Court's decision in Hall v. State, 541 So. 2d 1125 (Fla. 1989)(Hall VII). Hall is readily distinguishable from the instant case.

In <u>Hall v. Dugger</u>, 531 So. 2d 76 (Fla. 1988) (<u>Hall VI</u>), this Court, upon review of Hall's petition for writ of habeas corpus raising a <u>Hitchcock</u> claim, held that Hall's sentencing jury was improperly instructed but, the error was harmless beyond a reasonable doubt. Subsequently, Hall raised this same claim in a motion for post conviction relief in the trial court. Upon review of the denial of the motion, this Court (<u>Hall VII</u>) held that its

prior ruling on the Hitchcock claim did not constitute a procedural bar. This Court held that this was true because the motion involved significant additional non-record facts which were not considered in the habeas proceeding and because Hitchcock was a significant change in the law. Id. at 1126. In Hall VII the defendant proffered substantial nonstatutory mitigating evidence which counsel had been precluded from presenting below. This evidence included substantial evidence that Hall had a long history of drug and alcohol abuse, child abuse amounting to torture, organic brain damage resulting from repeated head trauma suffered as a child and adolescent and a very low intellectual level. This Court found just as compelling as the mental evidence was the evidence of the child abuse suffered by Hall as a child. This Court noted:

Affidavits from some of Hall's sixteen brothers and sisters paint a stark portrait of childhood filled with abject poverty, constant violence, and unbearable brutality. Borne the sixteenth of seventeen children to a mother and father who fought ceaselessly with knives, or whatever weapons available, Hall's childhood was marked by an existence which could only be described as Teachers and siblings immediately recognized him to be significantly mentally retarded. This retardation did not garner any sympathy from his mother, but rather, caused much scorn to befall him. Constantly beaten because he was "slow" or

because he made simple mistakes, Hall felt the wrath of his father, his mother and his neighbors, who had his mother's permission to beat Hall whenever they deemed it proper. Hall's mother would strap him to his bed at night, with a rope thrown over a rafter. In the morning she would awaken Hall by hoisting him up and whipping him with a belt, a rope, or cord.

Violence of this sort was a regular part of Hall's life as a child. Two of his siblings were murdered while Hall was young, while another brother was tied to a tree with a fire set underneath him.

Hall and his brothers and sisters were required by their mother to work in the fields from the time they could walk. During harvesting seasons, Hall would be kept out of school to work. When his school grades suffered as a result of this, he was further beaten severely.

Furthermore, there is substantial evidence that Hall's mother may have been insane, always believing that a famine was imminent requiring the οf their rationing supplies. As a result, Hall and his brothers and sisters worked fourteen hours a day in the fields to come home to empty dinner plates. this delusion, there addition to evidence that Hall's mother was extremely superstitious, believing encouraging Hall when he reported to her that he saw spirits and ghosts, hallucinations that have continued to plague Hall throughout his life. observations and assessments of Hall's family background are corroborated by documents and observations of professionals who dealt with him.

Id. at 1127 - 1128.

The holding in Hall was limited, however, to such extraordinary circumstances. In Clark v. Dugger, 559 So. 2d 192 (Fla. 1990), Clark asserted the Hitchcock claim in his petition for writ of habeas corpus to this Court. In rejecting that claim, this Court noted that the claim was procedurally barred because both this Court and the federal courts had considered Clark's sentencing in light of Hitchcock. This Court further noted that its decision in Hall VII was not such a change in the law as to require retroactive application and preclude imposition of the procedural bar. Clark at 194.

Further, it must be remembered that at the time Hall presented his Hitchcock claim to the Court Hitchcock had just been decided. Conversely, the decision in Alvord addressing the Hitchcock claim was two years after the rendering of Hitchcock. Thus, there was plenty of time for the law to develop and for counsel to ascertain that an evidentiary hearing was needed in order to develop non-record facts if such were necessary. Nevertheless, Alvord's counsel represented to this Court on pg. 2, paragraph #4 of his Petition for Extraordinary Relief, For Writ of Habeas Corpus; and Request For Stay of Mental Examination, that an evidentiary hearing was not needed as the error was apparent on the face of the record.

Clearly, if counsel had felt that an evidentiary hearing was warranted he should have requested such relief from this Court as this Court has not hesitated to remand for an evidentiary hearing where it was represented that additional nonrecord facts needed to be presented. Meeks v. Dugger, 576 So. 2d 713 (Fla. 1991). Alvord's current request for an evidentiary hearing is merely an attempt to get a "second bite at the apple". The state urges this Honorable Court to find that Alvord's affirmative assertion that an evidentiary hearing was unnecessary, precludes a subsequent claim that such a hearing is needed.

Even if Hall stood for the proposition that a defendant can have his Hitchcock claim revisited in circuit court, it is clearly limited to those instances where the defendant can produce substantial non-record mitigating evidence. Under any circumstances the defendant has the burden to establish that an evidentiary hearing is warranted. A motion for post conviction relief can be denied without an evidentiary hearing when the motion and the record conclusively demonstrates that the movant is entitled to no relief. See Agan v. State, 503 So. 2d 1254 (Fla. 1987); O'Callaghan v. State, 461 So. 2d 1354 (Fla. 1984).

In contrast to <u>Hall</u>, Alvord has not presented substantial nonstatutory mitigating evidence that was withheld from the jury or that was not previously considered by this Court when it rejected Alvord's prior <u>Hitchcock</u> claim. Much of the evidence that Alvord is now claiming should have been presented to the jury was in fact presented to the jury.

Alvord claims that the jury was precluded from hearing about his years as a teenager in a mental institution, his drug and alcohol abuse, his family history, including his mother's mental condition and rejection by his parents, his capacity for rehabilitation and the fact that he wore secondhand clothes. With the exception of Alvord's wardrobe of secondhand clothes, the bulk of this information was presented to the jury below and considered by this Court in its review of the Hitchcock claim. During the penalty phase of Alvord's initial trial Dr. Robey testified as follows:

Well, you know, without going into enormous detail, he began to have difficulty getting along with other kids, petty misdemeanors, breaking things, stuff of this sort. One time he was sent to the Methodist Children's Village in Michigan and he was admitted to a juvenile home upon several occasions. And, in 1960 when he was thirteen he was finally admitted to a mental hospital, Northfield State Hospital, which serves the Detroit area and was there from May 12, of 1960 until

February 16 of 19 6 3 . So, from the ages of thirteen to sixteen he had run away from the hospital several times, had made threatening phone calls, had committed other minor, but pesty, angry sorts of acts. And finally, on February . . 16, 1963, the Superintendent requested his transfer to the Iona State Hospital because of his frequent escapes because there was concern that he might be dangerous.

Question: What do these escapes mean? Is that sort of a walkaways or --

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